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1. Name

historic

and/or common  Charlestown Main Street Historic District

2. Location

street & number Main Street n/8_ not for publication

city, town  Charlestown _N/ayicinity of

state New Hampshire code 33 county Sullivan code 019

3. Classification

Category Ownership Status , Present Use

X _ district ___ public X occupied ___ agriculture —__ museum

___ building(s) —_ private —___unoccupied X _commercial ___ park

— structure X both — work in progress X educational X _private residence

—__ site Public Acquisition Accessible — entertainment X religious

____ object ____in process ____yes: restricted _X government ___ scientific
____being considered _X yes: unrestricted ____industrial ____transportation

n/a no —__ military ___ other:

4. Owner of Property

name Multiple - See attached sheets

street & number

city, town — vicinity of state

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Sullivan County Court House

street & number P.O. Box 448, 28 Main Street

city, town Newport state New Hampshire 03773

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

titte  see continuation sheets has this property been determined eligible? __yes X no

date _ federal ___ state _county __ local

depository for survey records

city, town state




7. Description

Condition Check one Check one

—___excellent ___deteriorated . ___ unaltered X original site

X good ____ruins X altered X moved date _see text
—fair — unexposed

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

The Charlestown Main Street Historic District consists of the section of Main Street along which
the town center of Charlestown developed and thrived beginning in the late 18th century. The
district contains 62 primary structures with their associated outbuildings, streetscape objects,
various memorials and monuments. Numerous roads intersect this section of Main Street, a State
road (Route 12), which is laid out with a north/south orientation. Entering from the north are
Sullivan, Summer, Perry, Elm, Olcott, and Paris Streets, while River, Church, Depot, and Railroad
Streets extend south from Main Street. .The north and south boundaries of the district are roughly
defined by railroad dry bridges.

With the exception of the School (#33) and Olcott property buildings (#36) which rise from a low
cleared hill at the southern part of the districts, most of the buildings are set on relatively flat
lots. Standard highway style cobra head lights mounted either on aluminum poles or telephone
poles dot the street, with crisscrossing electrical wires overhead. Concrete or asphalt sidewalks
line most of the street. Conversion of structures for commercial use has eradicated both sidewalks
and lawns in some areas, most notably in the northern part of the district, leaving several buildings
on the east side islands surrounded by asphalt parking, with little or no separation or definition
between these buildings and the street. The advent of the automobile resulted in angled parking
spots in front of some commercial structures and service stations digesting several street corners.
Sidewalks on the west side of Main Street are continuous and are set back approximately 15 feet
from the roadway. Elm trees which once lined Main Street have all but disappeared, destroyed
by Dutch Elm disease and the desire for additional parking on the east side of the street. In recent
years, over forty trees have been planted along the length of Main Street to try to fill this void.
They include lindens, flowering crabs, red oaks and gingkos. Buildings in the southern part of
the district retain their residential nature and are set back from the road with more generous
lawns and substantial trees. A series of 19th century fences survive at the front of properties
on the west side of the street in this area. Granite hitching posts of two varieties can be seen
throughout the. district and include simple rectangular posts and a later style (c.1870) displaying
chamfered corners and bulbous caps. Historic photographs indicate that simple carriage lights
on posts once illuminated Charlestown's Main Street.

The streetscape of Charlestown's town center combines residential, civic, commercial, and religious
structures with styles ranging from Federal and Greek Revival to the eclectic modes of the 19th
century and the automobile-inspired of the twentieth. At least ten buildings in the district predate
1800 though in several cases early features have been obscured by later additions and alterations
or as was common, construction of a more elaborate main house, using the original structure as
an ell. Periods of heightened building activity include the decade following 1800 and the 1830's;
eight buildings in the district date to each of these periods. Frame, stone and brick structures
are all represented within the district. Only seven buildings in the district have been constructed
since 1940. Beginning in the 1930s and '40s, a few Main Street structures were covered in synthetic
sidings in the name of modernization, lending only a sense of disrepair to these structures today.

Recent years have witnessed further changes in the downtown, accompanied by growing awareness
of Charlestown's historic resources. The addition to Silsby Library (#49) erected in 1977 respects
and echoes the detailing of -the original structure, including repetition of rockfaced belt courses.
The Town Hall (#21) is undergoing a longterm rehabilitation, of which a major portion was completed
in 1981. The building was listed in the National Register of Historic Places on March 15, 1984.
Several private rehabilitations have also occurred in recent years. New construction over the
past decades includes the High School (#33), and the Post Office (#27) and Bank (#28), in 1967
all in a "Colonial" mode.



8. Significance

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

— prehistoric _ archeology-prehistoric ___ community planning ___ landscape architecture ____religion

—_1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic ____conservation __law _____science

—1500-1599 ___ agriculture —___economics — literature — sculpture

—1600-1699 _X architecture —__ education — military — social/

X 1700-1799 ___ art —engineering — music humanitarian

—x 1800-1899 __ commerce — exploration/settlement ____ philosophy — theater

X 1900- 1924 ___ communications ____industry ____ politics/government _ transportation
: —__invention —other (specify)

Specific dates .1750-1924 Builder/Architect various, see text

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

Owing to its quality of design, setting, materials, workmanship and feeling, the
Charlestown Main Street Historic District figures significantly in the general category
of American architecture under National Register Criterion C. Beginning with its
early importance as the northernmost fort in the Connecticut River Valley,
Charlestown exerted a more extensive influence than any other town in the region
during the 18th century. During the 19th century Charlestown was reportedly one
of the most important law centers in New England next to Boston and Manchester,
NH.l Regional importance translated into a wealth of architecturally significant
structures including the more than sixty structures along Main Street included in
this district which date from c. 1750 - 1924. The district combines residential, civic,
commercial and religious structures, representing the work of prominent architects
of the day as well as relatively unknown master builders. Nearly all are fine examples
of their representative styles.

Charlestown, early known as Number 4, was chartered by Massachussetts in 1735
with the town plot laid out in 1737 and first settlers arriving in 1740. A frontier
town for twenty years beginning in the 1740's, Number 4 was part of a cordon of
forts protecting the region including Chesterfield (No. 1), Westwood (No.2), Walpole
(No. 3) and Charlestown. The fort itself, measuring 3/4 of and acre, was constructed
in 1743 on the west side of lower Main Street, near the current location of building
#45 in the district. Because it was for many years the northernmost outpost in the
Connecticut Valley, Charlestown's position early on was enhanced by its role as
a trading center for the surrounding countryside and a gateway to northern
settlements. The township was chartered by New Hampshire in 1753 as Charlestown.

It was not until about 1753 as the threat of Indian attack appeared to subside that
settlers began to prepare homes on the lots along what is now Main Street, still
in close proximity to the fort and despite the fact that Indian attacks continued
until 1760. The structure historically known as the Johnson House (#1) reportedly
integrates part of the original log cabin from which the Johnson family was taken
captive by Indians in 1754 and taken to Canada. Main Street itself was laid out
in 1763. Summer Street, predating Main Street by almost 20 years, gained early
importance as the road leading to the mill.

At least ten buildings in the district predate 1800 though in several cases early
features have been obscured by later additions, alterations or as was common,
construction of a later, more elaborate main house using the original structure as
an ell. The measurements of several of these buildings (#35) correspond nearly exactly
to the prescribed sizes of houses as dictated by the Province government and were
thus commonly called "Province Houses".2

One of the oldest surviving structures on Main Street is the brick North Primary
School (#5) constructed in 1772 but functioning as a dwelling since 1894. St. Luke's



9. Major Bibliographical References

See continuation sheet

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property 2pprox. 53 acres

Quadrangle name _Bellows Falls Quadrangle scale 1:§2500
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Verbal boundary description and justification

See continuation sheet

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state N/a code county code

state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/title Lisa Mausolf/Historic Preservation Specialist

organization Upper Valley-Lake Sunapee Council date September 1986

street & number 314 First NH Bank Building telephone (603) 448-1680
city or town Lebanon. state NH 03766

12. Statg Historic Preservation Officer Certification

R

The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

____ national ____state X _ local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89-
665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated

according to the criteria and procedures set forth a %P;r/k{Se ice.
( //0&/%&
L

/ N N4
titte New Hampshire State Historic Preservation Officer date 27 / Yo

e

State Historic Preservation Officer signature
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| Trreby certify that this property is included in the National Register
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LIST OF OWNERS BY SITE NUMBER

Site No. Owner Address
1,1A Tewksbury, Claire H. Box Y, Charlestown, NH 03603
2 Dunbar, Bernard & Margaret Box 1103, Charlestown, NH 03603
3 Hurlburt, Leroy & Sally 25 Hillstead Rd., Claremont, NH 03743
4 Ricker, Edward A & Anne S. Box 346, Charlestown, NH 03603
5 Bruce, Nona Box 25, Charlestown, NH 03603
6,7,7TA Charlestown Congregational Church P O Box E, Charlestown, NH 03603
8 Champlain Oil Co. San Remo Drive, S. Burlington, VT 05401
9 Zagaris Associates Foliage View, West Lebanon, NH 03784
10 Grenier, Gary & Diane Box 876, Charlestown, NH 03603
11 Springfield Properties, Inc. Ridgewood Drive, Springfield, VT 05156
12 BSMCW Associates, Inc. 91 Main Street, Claremont, NH 03743

- 13,13A Whitney, Kenneth R. & Alice R. Box 324, Charlestown, NH 03603
14,14A Whitney, Kenneth R. & Alice R. Box 324, Charlestown, NH 03603
15 Matheson, Lloyd & Nina Box L, Charlestown, NH 03603
16 Fairbanks, Margareeta Box 153, Charlestown, NH 03603
17 Cobb, Norman Box 366, Charlestown, NH 03603
18 Town of Charlestown Box 385, Charlestown, NH 03603
19 Lumbra, Cedric Box 31, Charlestown, NH 03603 -
20 Michaud, Yolande L. 23 Charlestown Rd., Claremont, NH 03743
21 Town of Charlestown Box 385, Charlestown, NH 03603
22,22A Duggan, Thomas M. P.0O.Box D, Charlestown, NH 03743
23 Babbitt, Lynwood J. & Lillian M. P.0.Box X, Charlestown, NH 03603
24 Stoddard, Ralph E. & Carolyn M. Box J, Charlestown, NH 03603
25 Henry, David Box 306, Charlestown, NH 03603
26,26 A Matheson, Lloyd J. Box L, Charlestown, NH 03603
27 Frizzell, Robert & Apolonia Box 246, Charlestown, NH 03603
28,28A Connecticut River Bank Box 500, Charlestown, NH 03603
29 Kennedy, John Box 884, Charlestown, NH 03603
30 Grabe, George Box 389, Charlestown, NH 03603
31,32,32A St. Catherine's Church Box 332, Charlestown, NH 03603
33 Fall Mt. School District Box 600, Charlestown, NH 03603
34,34A,34B Mortenson, Howard & Martha Box 885, Charlestown, NH 03603
35- Collins, Thomas & Elaine 92 Park Avenue, Danbury, CT 06810
36,36A,36B Foundation for Biblical Research Box 373, Charlestown, NH 03603
37 Mortenson, Howard & Martha Box 885, Charlestown, NH 03603
38 West, Elizabeth & Dodge, R.W. Box , Charlestown, NH 03603
38A Town of Charlestown Box 385, Charlestown, NH 03603
39,39A,39B Falk, Dorothy Elm Street, Boxford Village, Mass. 01921
40 ' Doucette, Gerarde & Linda Main Street, Charlestown, NH 03603
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41 Brys, William A. & Gertrude Box 256, Charlestown, NH 03603
42,42A,42B Perry, Richard Box 363, Charlestown, NH 03603
43 Van Velsor, Wesley & Honey Box 213, Charlestown, NH 03603
44,44A Blodgett, Frederick & Elizabeth L. Box 743, Charlestown, NH 03603
45,45A Luce, Alexander & Gladness W. Box 348, Charlestown, NH 03603
45B,45C Town of Charlestown Box 385 Charlestown, NH 03603
46,46 A Albee, H. Frank & Deborah 25 Hillstead Rd., Claremont, NH 03743
47,47A South Parish Unitarian Church Box 886, Charlestown, NH 03603
48,49 Town of Charlestown Box 385, Charlestown, NH 03603
90 Hofmeister, Richard & Janet RFD 2, Bridge St., Charlestown, NH 03603
51A,B,C, Town of Charlestown Box 385, Charlestown, NH 03603
52 Dixon, Barry 102 Elm St., Claremont, NH 03743
93,53A,54,54A St. Luke's Episcopal Church Box 326, Charlestown, NH 03603
95 Mortenson, Howard & Martha Box 885, Charlestown, NH 03603
55A Savi, Paul & Eloise Box 857, Charlestown, NH 03603
96,57 Clarebank, Inc. 145 Broad St., Claremont, NH 03743
98 Petrin, Origene & Florence Box 486, Charlestown, NH 03603
99,59A Charlestown Masonic Assoc. C/0O S. Bates, RFD 1, Box 181,

Charlestown, NH 03603

60,60A Sherman, Robert & Rebecca Box AS, Charlestown, NH 03603
61,61A Meier, Ronald & Deborah Clarendell St., Charlestown, NH 03603
62 Albee, H. Frank & Deborah 25 Hillstead Rd., Claremont, NH 03743
63 Strobel, Donald & Laraine Box 160, Charlestown, NH 03603
64 Stringer, Robert & Elaine Box 197, 146 Broad St., Claremont, NH
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REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS

- National Register Nomination
Charlestown Town Hall, listed March 15, 1984.

Depository: New Hampshire Office of Historic Preservation
Concord, NH 03301.

- Charlestown Historic Resources Survey
1985, Local

Depository: Upper Valley - Lake Sunapee Council
Lebanon, NH 03766.
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Descriptions begin at the northern end of the east side of Main Street, continue southward and
then, crossing the street, proceed northward along the opposite (west) side of the street.

1. Johnson House, (east side of Main Street), 1752 and later, Contributing.

A 1z story frame and clapboard structure with a low, broad gable front, measuring three bays
wide, the subject of numerous additions over the years. The central entrance is marked by an
enclosed porch with doublehung 2/2 windows framed by corner posts set above a low clapboarded
wall supporting a vertical flushboard pediment. The five-panel door is surrounded by sidelights
and transom lights with an outer paneled surround decorated by cornerblocks. Windows contain
2/2 doublehung sash flanked by blinds, a paired set of windows and a single unit on the north side.
The asphalt gable roof is punctuated by a central shed dormer on each slope. Offset to the north-
east is a 17 story ell with a secondary entrance marked by a pedimented hood on brackets on its
facade. A pedimented dormer above contains a pair of windows. Extending behind the ell and
set at right angles is a single-story clapboarded addition with an entrance on the south side. The
enclosed porch and dormers are twentieth century additions.

1A. Outbuilding, c. 1800, Contributing.

Northeast of the house is a clapboarded outbuilding with a standing seam, metal gable roof and
a sliding door. Its close eaves and doublehung 12/12 windows suggest a relatively early date of
construction.

This property is significant locally as the site of the Johnson Cabin from which the family was
taken captive by the Indians, August 30, 1754, and taken to Canada. Its history is so indicated
by a stone marker with bronze tablet erected by the D.A.R. in 1927. The present house was
reportedly built around the original log cabin. The original Johnson cabin door, complete with
what is reportedly an Indian's hatchet mark, was given by the D.A.R. to the Fort 4 Associates
and is on exhibit at Fort #4. Also worthy of note is an early brickyard which was once located
north of this house and furnished the brick for many of the buildings along Main Street.

2. House, (east side of Main Street), 1809 and earlier. Attributed to Stephen Hassam, master
builder,! Contributing.

A 27 story frame and clapboard structure measuring five bays wide and two bays deep, resting
on a concrete faced foundation. Like many Federal style structures, this building has few
elaborations other than its accentuated front door. Centered on the facade is a six-panel door
flanked by pilasters which support an elliptical fanlight divided into six segments and decorated
by delicate swags. The fanlight is set into the frieze of a full entablature and is flanked by raised
blocks. The cornice of the doorway, like the projecting cornice which encircles the building, is
decorated by acorn-like elements. The doublehung 6/6 windows feature thin mullions and molded
surrounds flanked by blinds. Doublehung 8/12 windows survive in the attic pediment ends. The
roof is sheathed in asphalt. Spanning both slopes of the 1% story clapboarded ell are continuous
shed dormers lit by small 8/8 windows, as is the first floor. A secondary entrance is located on
the south side of the ell marked by a gable hood supported by plain posts. An open breezeway
spans from the rear of the ell to a single-story barn/garage with openings on the south and fixed
4 x 3 light windows.
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The ell on this building appears to be a very early structure, contemporary with, if not earlier
than the Johnson house to the north. This house was the property of Stephen Hassam prior to
1809. In that year it was sold to Samuel Farrington, a cabinet maker, who apparently added the
front section.2 The first meeting of the Congregational Church took place in this house in 1835.3

3. House, (east side of Main Street), 1814 and earlier, Contributing.

A two-story frame structure set broadside to the street, sheathed in wide aluminum siding above
a concrete faced foundation and capped by a low gable roof with pediment ends. Centered on
the five-bay facade is a horizontally paneled door flanked by pilaster strips with raised fluting
and top and bottom horizontal bands. The pilasters support a flushboard pediment. Doublehung
2/2 windows are flanked by blinds. Any lintels which once existed have been obscured or removed
by siding. The south side elevation, originally two bays wide, has received an additional glass
and paneled door. The north side is a single bay wide. Two interior brick corbel cap chimneys
punctuate the asphalt roof. Centered on the rear elevation is a 2z story ell with a ridge line higher
than the main building in front. Windows also contain 2/2 sash. A two-story porch, screened
upstairs, spans the rear elevation. Offset to the northeast is a barn sheathed in barnboard over
clapboards with an attached clapboard barn.

According to local history, the ell of this house was probably built in the late 1700s. Prior to
1814 it was the property of Ephraim Carpenter who sold the property that year to Joseph Shepley,
who in turn added the front section and operated it as a tavern or public house. The building served
as the Congregational Parsonage from 1881 to 1912.4

4. Commercial building, (east side of Main Street), 1948, Non-Contributing.

A 2% story gable fronted structure consisting of a concrete block first floor with wide clapboards
above. The first floor contains two large plate glass windows, two entrances and an internally
lit plastic sign. Upstairs the unevenly spaced three window openings contain modern doublehung
windows with two horizontal panes in each sash, flanked by modern blinds. At the rear a single-story
concrete block wing connects the main building and a rear addition set at right angles with a single
garage opening on the west side.

This structure was built in 1948 by A. R. Stevens as a combination welding shop with apartment
on the second floor.?

5. Former North Primary School, (east side of Main Street), 1772, Contributing.

A 1% story structure measuring three bays wide and three bays deep situated with its entryless,
pedimented end to the street. The building is constructed of an orange brick laid in a bond
alternating seven rows of stretchers to a single row of headers. First-floor windows contain
doublehung 6/6 sash flanked by blinds and are capped by painted stone splayed lintels. Those in
the clapboarded pediment contain a smaller 6/6 sash with plain wooden lintels. According to historic
photographs the building originally had doublehung 12/12 windows. The main entry is located
in the rearmost bay on the south side and contains a glass and paneled door capped by a splayed
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lintel. A single offcenter corbel cap chimney projects from the slate roof. A projecting boxed
cornice surrounds the building, elaborated by a curved molding with repeating incised lines.

Offset at the rear is a clapboarded wing (1896) with modern fenestration, ending in a single garage
opening on the south side.

This building was originally constructed to house the North Primary School, District #3, in 1772.
It operated for this purpose until 1894 when it was sold at public auction to Dr. Whitaker for $125,
who converted it into a dwelling, adding part of the present ell and putting on a slate roof. Mrs.
Clara Comstock bought the property in 1896, completing the ell and adding a piazza (now removed).b
The interior arrangement of rooms and the exterior porchline are c.1975 alterations by architect
Livingston Elder for the present owner.

6. Congregational Church, (east side of Main Street), 1839, Contributing.

A single-story clapboarded church resting above a combination concrete/concrete block founda-
tion. Side elevations measure three bays wide, while the pedimented facade is fronted by a shorter
pedimented facade is fronted by a shorter pedimented pavilion flanked by a single window opening
on each side. Centered on the pavilion is a tripart window consisting of a doublehung 8/8 window
with a 4/4 window to each side and a louvered pointed arch atop the central window. Pointed
arch blinds are centered in the vertical flushboard pediment above. To each side of the pavilion
is a stained glass window capped by pointed arch blinds. Larger versions are located on the side
elevations, capped by a pointed arch overlay showing clapboards in a triangular shape underneath.
Entry is gained through recessed entrances on the north and south sides of the pavilion; each is
fronted by concrete steps with wrought iron railings. The glass doors have a recessed panel molding
surround with cornerblocks. The front entrance was remodelled in 1974 by architect, Livingston
Elder.

Recessed slightly from the front of the slate roof ridge is a clapboarded three-stage tower, square
in plan, which diminishes in size as it rises in height. The clapboarded first stage is without openings
and capped by a projecting boxed cornice, echoed on those stages above. Centered on each side
of the second and third stages is a set of louvered, pointed arch blinds. Pointed pinnacles crown
the corners of the uppermost stage. Simple cornerboards mark the building corners supporting
a projecting boxed cornice with plain frieze. Shallow returns decorate the rear of the church.

Extending behind is a two-story wing vestry addition lit by paired 6/6 windows. Abutting the ell
and set at right angles is a two-story structure capped by a saltbox roof with close eaves. A
single-story addition spans the front of the north part of this building with double doors and a
low pediment over the entrance.

This church was constructed in 1839 with initial alterations in 1864 including the removal of the
pew doors, the narrowing of the vestibule and relocation of the choir in a low gallery between
the doors. The rearmost structure, set at right angles to the church, functioning historically as
the Ladies' Hall (Dining Hall), was secured in 1870. It originally served as a carriage paint shop
with a ramp at the north end giving access from a street now closed. Additional interior
improvements were made in 1874 and 1903. The original vestry was constructed in 1876. It
subsequently burned and was rebuilt as described above.?
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Erected originally as the Evangelicai Congregational Church, the parish is now known as the United
Church of Christ Congregational Church.

7. Congregational Parsonage, (28 Main Street), 1912. Edward Dudley, builder.8 Contributing.

A 2z story frame and clapboard structure typical of the American Four Square house form. Set
above a brick foundation, the three-bay facade is spanned by a hip roofed, single-story porch with
wooden deck and latticed airspace. The porch is supported by Roman Doric columns between
which is a stick balustrade. A vertical beadboard pediment rises from the center of the porch
roof. The central entrance contains a wood and glass door capped by a simple entablature. To
each side of the entrance is a joined pair of 1/1 windows. Individual 1/1 windows with entablature
lintels and blinds predominate elsewhere on the building. Plain corner boards and a plain frieze
under projecting eaves mark the corners of the building. The high hipped roof is sheathed in asphalt
shingles with a hip dormer centered on the front slope. A small brick chimney emerges from the
rear slope. Partially spanning the rear elevation is a shed roofed porch supported by turned posts.

TA. Garage, c. 1920, Contributing.

Northeast of the house is a 1z story clapboarded garage with two sets of vertical board doors
on its gable front.

8. Gas Station, (southeast corner Main and Sullivan Streets), c.1960, Non-Contributing.

A single-story service station constructed of imitation textured stone with a modern "mansard-like"
wood shingle roof. The station consists of two garage bays with an office and displays a high
proportion of glass. A two story frame structure previously on the site was demolished in 1932
to make way for a filling station.?

9. Milliken House, (east side of Main Street), c. 1831.10 Contributing.

A 17 story asbestos covered structure set gable end to the street above a high, coursed, mortared
fieldstone foundation. A gabled vestibule marks the central entrance. Measuring two bays wide
and five deep, windows are predominately 2/2 with simple surrounds and blinds. Two 9/6 windows
survive in the attic. A single gable dormer is located on each side of the roof. A shed porch spans
the south side of the building, fronted by concrete stairs above a lattice airspace and supported
by attenuated chamfered posts on block bases. Offset to the northeast is a single-story wing
connecting the main house to a clapboarded barn with sliding doors on the south side.

Although this early residence, like many on Main Street, has been altered over the years to
accommodate commercial/apartment uses and is currently compromised by asbestos shingles,
it does retain much of its original character and exterior detail and should be considered a
contributing structure within the district. Constructed by local wheelwright Adam Milliken about
1831.
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10. Charlestown Inn, (east side of Main Street), 1817 and 1880's, Contributing.

A 37 story gable fronted structure sheathed in asbestos shingles with a facade measuring three
bays across. Cornice returns decorate the front; corner pilasters appear to have been covered
or removed. The first-story recessed porch has been partially enclosed to the north with continuous
full length 12/12 windows. Beneath the porch roof are five openings including a central entrance
featuring a large glass window. Above the wooden deck chamfered posts are set on bases with
recessed panels spanned by jigsaw balusters and capped by curved wooden brackets with incised
circles. A shed addition is at the rear of the south side while a flat roofed section connects the
main building to a long single-story clapboarded garage with sliding doors on the south side. A
large wooden sign above the first floor reads "Charlestown Inn." To the left is an interior-lit plastic
sign above which is a c¢. 1930 lit circular clock.

Originally a simple cottage, the core of this structure was constructed in 1817 by Elihu Dickinson
for his daughter and son-in-law, Dr. John Batchelder. In the 1880s it was known as the Star Hotel
and received an extensive addition for this purpose. It was renamed "Elm House" in 1888 and
served as a hotel under various names until 1941, at which time it was converted to apartments.11

11. Briggs House, (east side of Main Street), 1835 with later additions, Contributing.

A two-story clapboarded structure set with its three-bay wide gable end to the street and side
elevations measuring five bays wide. Encircling the west and south sides is a single-story (c. 1870)
porch supported by chamfered posts on bases which are capped by scroll brackets above a latticed
airspace. Plain cornerboards mark the ends of the structure ending in cornice returns with eaves
flush with the end walls. The sidehall entrance contains a raised six-panel door flanked by pilasters
topped by brackets with a simple recessed frame adorned by cornerblocks. An additional entrance
is located underneath the porch on the south side and contains a paneled turn-of-the-century door
with large glass upper pane. With the exception of a single 12/12 window (probably indicative
of the original sash configuration), windows are 2/2 doublehung with exterior storm windows and
blinds. A single-story shed is located at the rear of the north side of the main house. Extending
behind is a two-story wing and a shed addition on the south side, behind which is an attached
single-story clapboarded gable-roofed shed, converted to function as a three-car garage.

Built by cabinetmaker Joseph Briggs in 1835,12 this simple structure exhibiting Federal, Greek
Revival and Italianate syles has seen few changes over the years except for a new window sash
configuration.
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12. Young's Diner, (48 Main Street), c.1930-40, Non-Contributing.

Lying beneath this single-story stone facade capped by a wood shingled hip roof is a Worcester
Diner which originally featured a railroad style monitor roof still visible from the interior. Inside,
detailing is basically intact with tile floors and sidewalls and marble counters. The diner also retains
its iron wheels and rubber tread. A single-story frame addition (c. 1973) connects the diner to
a two-story house sheathed in asbestos shingles and capped by a standing seam metal hip roof.
An octagonal two-story tower with flared polygonal cap roof marks the southwest corner of the
square plan. Windows are 1/1 doublehung. A gable wing extends behind.

The house at the rear was built by Richard Robertson in 1887. The diner was moved to this site
by Guy Young in 1946 and was later enlarged to accommodate a bus terminal. At the rear of
the main house, the stable was converted into a dwelling in 1942.13

The integrity of both the Worcester diner and the late 19th century structure at the rear are
currently compromised by the application of artificial sidings, obscuring a classic example of
the diner and a fine example of the Queen Anne style. In view of its current state, this structure
should be considered noncontributing to the character and integrity of the district.

13. Stebbins House, (56 Main Street), 1856 and earlier, Contributing.

A two-story house sheathed in asbestos shingles and set with its pediment end facing the street
above a granite block foundation. Ends are two bays wide and side elevations are three, with
the main entrance centered on the south side marked by a low pediment, three-bay porch supported
by Roman Doric columns with simple stick balusters. Like the single-story, flat roofed porch
spanning the west side, also with Roman Doric columns, the front porch was apparently added
c. 1900. Beneath the entrance porch the front door is framed by transoms and sidelights, and
features a pair of long octagonal panes over smaller wooden panels. Window openings contain
paired, thin doublehung 4/4 sash, which together are no wider than a regular window. At the rear
is a 12 story wing with a gable doorhood with arched opening centered on the south side.

The 1% story ell appears to predate the front section of this house. J. C. Stebbins, who operated
a boot and shoe business and was a popular auctioneer, moved a small cottage on the front of
the lot back to this knoll (now the ell), and added the front section in 1856.14

13A. Barn, c. 1900, Contributing.

Northeast of the house is a clapboarded barn (24' x 30') with a sliding door on the south side and
a perpendicular smaller shed attached at the rear.
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14. Bond House, (62 Main Street), 1887 and earlier, Contributing.

A two-story structure capped by a standing seam metal hip roof sheathed in clapboards on the
first floor with wood shingles above, the basic rectangular plan enhanced by a polygonal three-story
tower at the southwest corner, sheathed in fish scale shingles and capped by an ogee roof. Located
at the northeast corner is a three-sided second-story bay window surmounted by a clapboarded
pediment with central medallion. A three-bay single-story porch spans the facade supported by
paired Doric columns on clapboard pedestals joined by attenuated spindles with paired circular
medallions above the columns. Centered on the south side is the main entrance marked by a flat
roofed porch supported by two.single Doric columns. Behind the porch is a single-story rectangular
bay. There are four doublehung 2/2 windows beneath the porch roof with 1/1 predominating
elsewhere. Extending behind are several single-story attached sheds.

According to local history, this building apparently includes a 12 story cottage owned by Deacon
Obediah Wells possibly constructed as early as 1792. In 1887 the property was bought by George
Bond, who was responsible for extensive alterations and the building's present appearance.l®

14A. Carriage Barn, c. 1887, Contributing.

A single-story clapboarded barn/garage (c.1887) measuring 30' x 38' with a hip roof capped.by
a square ventilator is located behind the main house.

15. Gas Station, (east side of Main Street), c.1928, Non-Contributing.

Set at an oblique angle to the other structures along Main Street this single-story flat roofed service
station is constructed of enameled metal panels. The station front consists of two garage bays
with an office which is accented by a cantilever above its plate glass windows. The garage doors
are constructed of glass panes set in a minimal metal frame. An additional garage opemng is on
the south side. A smaller concrete block section is at the rear.

In 1928 Bartlett Maxim built the store to the south and a filling station.16 The present service
station may actually have been constructed somewhat later.

16. Maxim Meat Market, (66 Main Street), 1928, Non-Contributing.

A single-story cottage sheathed in wood shingles capped by a low gable roof with a shed addition
at the south. The offcenter entrance is marked by a pediment doorhood set on plain brackets
sheltering a paneled door with large glass pane. Adjacent to it on the facade is a large single-pane
picture window. Attached behind is a shed addition with 2/2 windows like that in front.

Built by Bartlett Maxim in 1928.
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17. Former Methodist Meetinghouse, (68 Main Street), 1836, Contributing.

A 2% story pediment fronted building sheathed in wide particle board clapboards above a foundation
faced in concrete. Wide paneled corner pilasters with cornerblocks mark the ends of the building
beneath projecting eaves. Facade fenestration features five openings on the first floor, six on
the second and two on the third. Fronted by cement steps with wrought iron railings, the central
entrance contains a six-panel door flanked by half sidelights and capped by a peaked lintel. Windows
are primarily 6/6 doublehung with simple surrounds. Attic windows are 2/2 above which is a
louvered pointed arch opening. Side elevations have uneven fenestration. A single shed dormer
is located on the north roof slope. A gable doorhood supported by wrought iron columns is located
at the rear of the south side. Cornice returns decorate the rear elevation which is sheathed in
wood clapboards. Offset to the northeast is a plywood addition on a concrete foundation with
an exterior staircase and open carport.

Although the integrity of this structure, aesthetically and possibly structurally, is compromised
by the application of cardboard-like siding, it retains significance for its former use as the Methodist
Meetinghouse and for its unique blend of simple Greek Revival and Gothic details. The building
was originally built in 1836 on the west side of Main Street and moved to this site in 1856 after
the Methodists disbanded.17 It is currently used as an apartment house. '

18. Former Charlestown Firehouse, (east side of Main Street), 191 0.18 Contributing.

A 1z story clapboarded, gable fronted building with a large shed addition to the north. A wide
garage door fills the first story of the gable front with a set of three 2/2 windows centered above,
capped by lip lintels. Plain cornerboards support a wide frieze with cornice returns decorating
the ends. A doorway with horizontal bottom panels and a large pane of glass above is located
between the garage door and a large single-pane window and large garage door occupying the
facade of the shed addition. An additional door, similar to that described, is located on the south
side. Shed addition is set on a cement block foundation.

Built with a 60-foot tower for drying hose which was recently removed. Since the construction
of a new fire house (north of building #1) in 1974, this building has housed the Charlestown Water
and Sewer Departments.
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19. Willard Store, (72 Main Street), 1806, Contributing.

A two-story gable fronted structure built of brick laid in a bond alternating five rows of stretchers
to a row of headers above a granite foundation. Spanning the first story of the three-bay facade
is a wooden canopy supported by large ornate curved brackets with inscribed triangles. The central
entrance contains a wooden door with a large glass pane with two horizontal panels below. Located
on either side is a large single-pane window, each capped by a paneled lintel. Concrete steps
front the doorway. The brick pilasters visible on the first floor give rise to recessed arches on
the second featuring keystones with the outline of the arch painted white. Windows on the second
floor contain doublehung 2/2 sash with simple surrounds. Several of the blinds have been removed.
Cornice returns decorate the gable end with a louvered semicircular opening in the attic. A hanging
neon sign advertises "Rick's Electrical." Suspended on the second story of the north side is a boarded
door opening. At the rear is a gable roofed clapboard addition (c. 1900) above a brick foundation
with a shed entrance on the north side. Behind it a second-story screened porch cantilevers over
an open storage area.

This structure was built as a store by Roswell Willard in 1806, with bricks made in the brickyard
north of the Johnson House (#1).19

20. Building, (74 Main Street), c. 1830, Contributing.

A 2z story gable fronted clapboarded structure set upon a loose granite block foundation measuring
three bays across and five bays deep. Concrete steps from the central entrance containing a
"Colonial" style door with half sidelights and flanked by two pairs of doublehung 8/8 windows.
The upper story contains three 6/6 with simple surround and blinds with a single 2/2 in the attic.
Simple cornerboards support a pedimented front with brackets adorning the eaves and pediment.
A gable doorhood is located at the rear of the south side. A mixture of 8/8 and 12/12 windows
light the rear elevation which is marked by the ghost of a rear wing which has been removed. The
eaves of the rear elevation cling closely to the wall.

Visual inspection suggests a c. 1830 construction date for this building which was moved to the
east side of the street from a site just south of the Eagle Hotel (see #52) just prior to the 1842
fire which destroyed numerous buildings on the west side of Main Street.20
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21. Charlestown Town Hall, (Summer Street), 1872-1873. Edward Dow, Architect, Contributing.

A two-story brick structure standing in a small square set back from and east of Main Street with
one of its gable ends, facing south, treated as the facade. The building measures three bays by
six bays, defined by rusticated brick pilasters which rise from the loose granite block foundation
to the bracketed cornice and pediments. A belt course of corbelled brick separates the two stories.
The first story of the facade is pierced by three openings, of which two are doorways and the
third is a window. Both doorways are fronted by granite steps and have two-leaf doors with flat
panels at the bottom and tall panes of glass above, capped by two-light transoms. All of the
openings in the structure are spanned by segmental brick arches with keystones, supported by
corbelled brick impost blocks. Window openings are filled with two arched 6/4 sashes separated
by a wooden mullion. Second-story windows are taller but identical in detail to those on the first
floor with 6/6 sash. The entablature which encircles the entire structure has a corbelled brick
architrave and frieze with a wooden cornice supported by console brackets. Centered in the facade
pediment is a recessed triangular panel filled with brick and bearing a granite tablet with "1872"
carved in relief. The rear pediment is pierced by a bull's-eye window which lights the attic of
the structure. A doorhood of corrugated steel supported by steel pipes is located on the west
side. - :

On the interior the first floor is comprised of two areas, the Town Hall (more recently used. as
a courtroom) and the stairhall. The southwest room on the first floor was originally the grocery
store of Simon Cooley, provided in exchange for some of Cooley's land taken for a site for the
Town Hall. The room was used as a Selectmen's Office through much of the 20th century. The
Police Department was also located here. The Town Hall features a pressed metal ceiling and
a semielliptical niche behind the bench. The second-floor hall, seating approximately 400 people,
has a stage at the north end with a proscenium arch added in 1934.

Renovation of the building occured in 1981. Window frames were removed, repaired and reinstalled
with plexiglass. The front door, steps and roof were replaced, an interior fire escape was installed
and the exterior steel fire escape was removed.

This gtlructure was individually listed on the National Register of Historic Places on March 15,
1984.
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22. Former Connecticut River Bank, (5 Summer Street), 1824. Stephen Hassam, master builder.22
Contributing. .

Opposite the Town Hall is this single-story gable fronted building constructed of stretcher bond
brick, its three-bay facade and four-bay side elevations defined by recessed brick arches. It is
set above a loose granite block foundation. The offcenter sidehall entrance contains a six-panel
door (three across) recessed behind a paneled embrasure and capped by a louvered fan decorated
by a rope molding. Granite steps with an iron rail and bootscraper front the doorway. Centered
in the flushboard front pediment is a raised triangular panel. An elaborate cornice featuring mutules
with drilled holes, a rope molding and tassels encircles the building. Windows are 6/6 doublehung
with stone sills, flat brick arch lintels and blinds, those at the rear of the building have closed

shutters. An important reminder of the building's banking heritage is the alarm box supported
by brackets on the facade.

Attached to the rear of the building is a modern vertical flushboard garage addition with a
mansard-like roof.

Erected in 1824 at a cost of $2,400, this ‘was the scene of a famous local bank robbery on June
10, 1850. Operated under a variety of names over the years including Connecticut River Bank,
Connecticut River National Bank, and Connecticut River Savings Bank.23 The building retains
its central walk-in bank vault.

23. Building, (east side of Main Street), c. 1796 and c. 1870, Non-Contributing.

A single-story structure with attic formed by a hip on mansard roof. The profile of the roof is
altered by a two-story shed addition which cantilevers from the south roof. A porch is recessed
.at the southwest corner. The building is sheathed in aluminum siding although some tongue and
groove boards below are exposed. Marking the offcenter entrance is a gable entrance porch
supported by wrought iron posts above a low flight of concrete steps. Like the picture window
and sliding windows flanking the entrance, the multilight front door is a modern addition. The
only original window frames appear to be those in the low pedimented dormers containing 1/1
windows with exterior storms. Three are located in front with five spanning the north side of
the rear addition. At the rear is a two-story ell with a gable-on-mansard roof with a cantilever
supported by plain posts at the rear. Projecting from the north side of the addition is a gable
shed sheathed in vertical boards.

Originally built by Judge Sumner about 1796, later known as the Stebbins Block and Dodge Block,
with extensive alterations c. 1870.24 Once a unique example of the French Second Empire style
along Main Street, the integrity of this structure has been seriously compromised by artificial
sidings, additions and window replacement rendering it noncontributing to the district.
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24. Dean Store, (82 Main Street), 1787 and later, Non-Contributing.

A two-story frame structure capped by a combination hip-gable roof set above a stone foundation
and greatly altered and remodeled over the years. Part of this structure is said to incorporate
a building erected by Aaron Dean in 1787 for commercial purposes. Formerly four bays across
with a single-story porch spanning the facade supported by attenuated posts; today a wood shingled
hip roof extends from the edge of the gable roof obscuring original second-floor openings and
supported by large posts. Plate glass storefronts have replaced the original alternating multipane
windows and door openings. The second story of the facade is sheathed in wood shingles; the
remainder is covered in vertical metal standing seam siding obscuring clapboarding. Extending

behind is a single-story modern extension, the full width of the building, tripling the area of the
original.

Originally there were three stores on the street floor of this building. Although some historic
material may survive underneath the siding, including perhaps part of the original store erected
by Aaron Dean in 1787, this building should be considered noncontributing within the district due
to extensive alterations.?2°

25. Nourse's Pharmacy, (84 Main Street), 1924, Contributing.

A single-story gable roofed structure sheathed in clapboards. The stucco covered pediment front
features a brightly painted central wreath containing a mortar and pestle with a cornucopia on
each side brimming with fruit. The storefront features a recessed central entrance with vertical
panels below the plate glass windows and prism glass transoms. Metal columnettes mark the corners
of the storefront with fluted pilasters at the ends of the building. An awning spans the front
partially obscuring a cornice alternating circles and pharmaceutical glassware motifs. A leaded
fanlight is located over the front door. Encircling the building is a boxed cornice. Most windows
on the side elevations have been covered over; a single 6/6 survives. A small frame shed spans
the rear addition.

Constructed in 1924 by George Nourse as a pharmacy26 (a function it continues to serve more
than 60 years later), this small structure is a unique interpretation of the Classical Revival style
combining classical forms and details in a decidedly 20th century, whimsical fashion.

26. Bowen Garage Company, (Main Street and Perry Street), 1921, Contributing.

A two-story building constructed of brick laid in a bond alternating six rows of stretchers to a
row of headers and stretchers. The facade measures five bays across, the center three openings
are grouped together, accentuated by a stepped parapet. Underneath the concrete cap is a row
of brick, concrete cornice and a row of header bricks on edge. Large glass storefronts light the
first floor featuring a large glass flanked by two vertical strips with small panes at the top.
Concrete cornerblocks and stretcher brick surround the windows. The central entrance is capped
by two recessed ligchts. The second floor has paired 6/1 windows with concrete sills supported
by two brackets. A gable hood supported by turned brackets marks an entrance at the rear of
the south side. At the rear is a two-story wing, originally a single-story, flat roofed, now with
an upper story (c. 1975) sheathed in T-111 siding and capped by a low gable roof. First-floor
windows are 12/12 with concrete surrounds and brick surrounds like the main building. Upper-story
windows are paired 1/1.
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Constructed in 1921, this brick commercial block originally housed a garage, with an automobile

display room once occupying the first floor with its large storefront windows. The longest tenant
was Keil Lock, manufacturer of locks and keys.27

North of the garage is a single story flat roofed addition constructed c.1968 and housing the
Charlestown Mill Store which is marked by an internally lit plastic sign hung from the building
facade. The brick is laid in a stretcher bond. Concrete steps with wrought iron railings front
the "Colonial" door. Windows. contain 1/1 doublehung sash. Occupying this site until 1968 when
it was destroyed by fire, was a house constructed by Aaron Dean in 1788, later known as the
"Mansion House" with towers and piazzas added over the years.28

27. U.S. Post Office, (Main Street and Perry Street), 1967, Non-Contributing.

A single-story "Colonial"-inspired structure constructed of brick laid in a common bond above
a concrete foundation. The gable roof is sheathed in asphalt shingles with a front pediment
constructed of vertical boards, its north half supported by a brick wall. The southern half is devoted
to a recessed entrance framed by fluted posts with two pairs of 6/6 windows underneath. Contained
in the pediment is a round window with a grid of mullions. Remaining windows are 6/6. The square
ventilator with louvered openings is capped by a flared pyramidal metal roof with a gilt quill pen
weathervane. A loading dock extends at the rear.

Its recent date of construction renders this structure noncontributing within the district. Site

. of first 2rsr)leeting house 1753-1763 and later a house long known as the "Lambs Club" constructed
in 1790.

28. Connecticut River Bank, (east side of Main Street), 1967, Non-Contributing.

A single-story gable roofed, modern structure constructed of brick laid in a common bond above
a concrete foundation. Centered on the facade is a pedimented, enclosed glass entrance porch
articulated by a frieze and pilasters with entry through modern glass doors capped by transoms.
On each side of the entrance is a large multilight picture window. Remaining windows are 6/6
capped by flat arch brick lintels. A simple molded cornice encircles the building; the pediment
ends are clapboarded. A drive up window projects from the south side. A flat roofed addition
triples the building area at the rear.

Noncontributing within the district because of its recent date of construction.
28A. Garage, c. 1980, Non-Contributing.

Southeast of the bank is a small gable-front modern garage constructed of T-111 siding with two
individual openings.
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29. Former South Parish Parsonage, (106 Main Street), 1857. Brooks Kimball, builder, Contributing.

A 23 story gable fronted clapboarded structure three bays wide and two bays deep with an almost
square plan. A single-story flat roofed porch spans the facade supported by open slotted posts
above a wooden deck. The central entrance is framed by sidelights and transoms and flanked
by an elongated floor-length window on each side. Simple wide cornerboards and a baseboard
outline the structure. The projecting eaves are adorned by paired curvilinear brackets as is the
front porch. Windows on the structure feature pairs of 4/4 windows within a single window width.
They are capped by entablature lintels and framed by blinds. Extending behind is a 1% story
shed/garage wing with a single-story shed spanning the rear elevation.

Construction of this building for a parsdnage was made possible by the Ladies' Sewing Society
of the South Parish Church in 1857 at a cost of $2,317. It remained as such until 1884 and is now
a single-family residence.30

30. Willard House, (southeast corner Main and Elm Streets), c. 1770-1790, Contributing.

A clapboarded 2z story structure situated above a stone block foundation and set broadside to
the street. It is capped by a low pitch gable roof with eaves flush with the sidewalls. The paired
central entrances feature individual door frames with recessed panels, cornerblocks and peaked
lintels. Each contains a six-panel door framed by full sidelights. These doorways were added
c. 1839 when the structure was converted to a two-family house. Windows contain primarily
doublehung 2/2 sash (not original) with lip lintels and blinds. Centered on each of the side elevations
is a panel door with a plain surround and lip lintel. A blind window is located above. Extending
behind is a single-story ell, a recent addition, (c. 1980) containing two garage openings and a
recessed entrance in the northeast corner.

This house is on the original grant of Lieutenant Moses Willare who came to Charlestown in 1742.
It is not clear whether the house dates to the earliest period of settlement, or whether this house
was preceded by an earlier house.31 This house is one of the earliest structures in the town center,
its age indicated by the gentle slope of the gable roof and lack of projecting eaves. Over the
years it has housed a tavern, store, storage place for wool, and residence and was converted to
a two-family house c. 1839. Today it houses offices and apartments upstairs.

31. Thompson House, (116 Main Street), c. 1872, Contributing.

A 27 story clapboarded structure set broadside to the street above a brick foundation, measuring
three bays wide and two deep. A single-story porch supported by posts on pedestals with raised
panels spans the facade with a bracketed cornice. The low balustrade features turned pieces with
incised detailing. The central entrance contains double doors. The facade is dJominated by a central
wall dormer, while the side elevations feature pediment ends. Simple cornerboards, a plain frieze
and boxed cornice outline the structure. Windows are 1/1 doublehung with blinds and capped by
plain wooden lintels. Those on the first-floor side elevations feature peaked lintels with arched
doublehung 1/1 window, with similar windows in the pedimented ends. Extending behind is a
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two-story ell behind which is a smaller two story wing with a porch spanning the first floor and
two jerkinheaded bay projections above, decorated by ornate bracketwork.

Built by Edward Thompson probably soon after a small house previously on the -site ‘'was moved
in 1872. Bought by the Catholic Church for a Rectory in 1916, a purpose it continues to serve.32

32. St. Catherine's Roman Catholic Church, (118 Main Street), 1880, Contributing.

A clapboarded stick style church decorated by a pattern of horizontal, vertical and diagonal
stickwork and set above a foundation of rusticated concrete blocks. The church consists of a
nave with a steeply pitched gable front, rear transepts and two-stage tower offset at the southwest
corner. Centered on the facade is a gable roofed entrance porch supported by turned posts, with
stick balusters above a lattice airspace and fronted by a set of stairs. The porch is decorated
by a cross collar brace and is topped by a cross. Sheltered underneath are double doors within
a pointed four-sided frame. To each side is a smaller window with similar outline filled with
diamond panes. Above the entrance is a circular stained glass window framed by the projecting
eaves of the gable front with boxed cornice, culminating in a collar tie beam. Side elevations
measure five bays and are defined by buttresses consisting of wooden posts with weatherings set
on concrete block piers extending from the foundation. Each contains a single window with peaked
rectangular shape similar to those in front.

The two-stage square tower consists of a two-story clapboarded base capped by a truncated hip
slate roof with hexagonal shingles, below which is a bracketed cornice. Set above the hip roof
the square upper stage features a pair of peaked rectangular openings on each set filled with louvers
with scallop edges. A peaked molding surrounds the pair with an inset of incised ornament inset
at the top. This stage is sheathed in vertical flushboards and each side features a cross gable
with collar brace at the bottom edge of the pyramidal spire crowned by a cross. A clapboarded
single-story section extends from the rear of both sides with a gable doorhood set on brackets.
A small gable shed is located on the north side. Double lancet windows and a collar brace decorate
the rear elevation which is clapboarded above a vertical board base.

Constructed in 1880 this church originally stood on a lot donated by Sherman Paris on the hill
east of his residence (see #36). The structure was moved to its present site in 1915 at which time
the interior was redecorated and electric lights and steam heat were installed. Noteworthy on
the interior are four Tiffany windows donated by Mr. Paris.33

32A. Carriage House, c.1875, Contributing.

Northeast of and behind the church is this fanciful 1z story clapboarded carriage house, set with
its narrow end to the street. Set into a hill, the building's brick foundation is exposed on the western
side. The.building is capped by a long flat roof with smaller sloping sides on each end. The wide,
central open doorway is capped by a gambrel-shaped door hood supported by large, heavy knee
braces worked on a mechanical lathe with octagonal cutouts and geometric detailing influenced
by the "Eastlake" style. The front of the gambrel is decorated by a collar brace filled with
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crisscrossing. To each side of this large opening is a smaller sliding door with two vertical
rectangular upper windows above recessed panels filled with diagonal beadboard. Flanking each
sliding door is a doublehung 1/1 window with a shed hood supported by smaller heavy brackets
‘with Eastlake ornament. On the second floor, above each sliding door, there is a diagonal braced
door capped by a similar shed hood. A triangular-shaped window with latticed panes is located
above each hood. Above the central entrance are two individual doublehung windows capped by
steeply pitched gable hoods, decorated by collar braces and supported by massive brackets. Windows
on the side elevations contain 1/1 sash with shed hoods. Simple cornerboards outline the building,
supporting a projecting, bracketed cornice.

33. Charlestown High School, (Main Street and Olcott Lane), 1950, Non-Contributing.

A two-story Georgian-inspired brick structure set back from Main Street's 19th century residences
atop a low hill. The building is capped by a hip roof and measures 13 bays across, the three central
openings forming a projecting pavilion capped by a flushboard pediment reading "Charlestown
School." Brick is laid in a bond consisting of five rows of stretchers to one row alternating headers
and stretchers. The central entrance contains two double doors with multilight upper sections
above lower panels and capped by multiple rows of transom lights. The doors are framed by fluted
pilasters set against rusticated wooden blocks. Above a peaked lintel is a flushboard pediment.
Windows in the central pavilion are 18/18 while remaining windows are 15/15, all with flat arch
gauged brick lintels and concrete sills. Basement windows are 5/5. A boxed cornice surrounds
the building. Centered on the roof ridge is a cupola with a square flushboard base pierced by
louvered rectangular vents capped by a copper cushion roof crowned by a ball. Extending at the
rear is a single-story ell.

This school was preceded on the site by a two story frame house with a mansard roof built by
Edward Thompson c.1852. After the house was destroyed by fire c.1892 the lot remained vacant
until 1950-1 when it was purchased by the town and the new high school was built. 34 This former
high school now functions as an elementary school. Owing to its recent date of construction, this
building is judged to be noncontributing to the district.

34. West House, (southeast corner Main Street and Olcott Lane), 1784 with later alterations,
Contributing.

A 2% story frame and clapboard structure set back from the street by a deep lawn and resting
above a stone block foundation. The pedimented facade measures five bays wide and is spanned
by a single story flat roofed porch. The columns are spanned by a stick balustrade, a low pediment
rising from the porch roof marks the location of the central entrance. The front door is flanked
by full sidelights. All of the windows on the building contain doublehung 6/6 sash and are flanked
by blinds, topped by shelf lintels and covered by hinged 6/6 light storm windows. Those on the
first floor are elongated. Above the entrance is a tripart window consisting of a 6/6 window flanked
by two smaller 6/6 windows and lacking the blinds of the other windows. Centered in the flushboard
pediment is a 6/6 window flanked by sidelights fitted with blinds. Simple cornerboards give rise
to a boxed cornice with two part frieze, ending in returns on the rear elevation. Four brick
chimneys punctuate the copper standing seam metal roof. A single story glassed porch projects
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- from the south side of the house. The long two story ell is capped by a slate roof with an exterior
chimney at the rear of the building. Windows on the ell also contain 6/6 sash. A shed entrance
porch projects from the north side while a rear porch is sheltered by a broken pediment supported
by plain posts. :

34A. Stable, c. 1890, Contributing.

Northeast of the house is a large two story clapboarded structure resting above a brick foundation
with its long elevation facing Olcott Lane. Originally a stable it was later converted to apartments.
Two garage doors open to the west. The asphalt roof has projecting eaves and is capped by a two
stage square ventilator. It is lit by a 6/6 window on each side and capped by a pyramidal roof
with weathervane. A small ell extends southward from the eastern side with a shed dormer spanning
the east side of its slate roof.

34B. Gazebo, c. 1890, Contributing.

Southeast of the house is an open octagonal gazebo capped by a red metal segmental roof. Its
turned posts feature cutout decoration and a jigsaw-work frieze.

This house was constructed by Benjamin West about 1784. Purchased in 1836 by Hon. J.J. Gilchrist
who later planted a grove in the front yard and was probably responsible for the Greek Revival
alterations on the exterior. The house was sold to George Olcott in 1890 and was the home of
A.T. Morse from 1905 until 1939. The house was extensively remodelled by Morse in 1905, including
the addition of the south sunporch. Also at this time the original single bay pedimented entrance
porch supported by two columns was replaced with the present porch spanning the entire facade. 35

35. House, (east side of Main Street), c.1740 & 1830. Stephen Hassam, master builder of latter
section, Contributing.

A 2% story clapboarded structure measuring five bays wide and three bays deep, set pediment
end to the street above a granite block foundation, behind a picket fence. The central entrance
consists of a molded six panel door flanked by half sidelights flanked by unusual pilasters marked
by two indentations running the height of each pilaster and supporting a full entablature with
a plain frieze. The doublehung 6/6 windows are capped by plain rectangular wooden lintels and
are fitted with exterior storm windows and blinds. Plain cornerboards give rise to a boxed cornice
which projects slightly. Two windows light the pediment, which is sheathed in horizontal flushboard.
Four tall interior brick chimneys punctuate the slate roof. A single story clapboarded wing extends
behind, spanned on the south side by a recessed porch supported by plam posts. Two gable dormers
on the south side contain 9/6 sash. Remaining windows on the wing are 12/12, suggesting that
this section predates the front. Attached to the end is a clapboarded barn/garage with an asphalt
roof, close eaves and a sliding door on the south side.

According to the Second History of Charlestown, this house is located on lot #20 of the original
proprietors lots and the ell may date to that early period. Its proportions echo the required
dimensions of the grants and handhewn timbers and the clapboards between the ell and the main
part of the house are still evident. The house had a succession of owners before the front section
was added c. 1830-40 for one of two owners, Joseph Heaton or Jesse Healy. The builder was
apparently Stephen Hassam, as indicated by a "clock-in-the-wall", his trademark.36 Historic
photographs indicate that the front door was previously sheltered by a flat-roofed eritrance porch,
a single bay wide, supported by posts.
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36. Olcott House, (east side of Main Street), 1774 and 1889, Contributing.

Set back approximately 300 feet from Main Street is this impressive two story clapboarded structure
consisting of a central block with a five bay facade facing Main Street, flanked by a two-story
pediment end ell on each side. Wooden quoins decorate the building corners. Each of the pediment
end sections projects slightly from the central core; this space is filled by a colonade consisting
of four two-story high fluted Doric columns supporting a full entablature with a rectangular panel
above each column. The central entrance contains two large wooden doors capped by a swan's
neck pediment. Windows on the building contain doublehung 6/6 sash flanked by blinds. First floor
windows are capped by entablature lintels. On the second story the top of the window is without
a lintel and is flush with the projecting bracketed cornice which surrounds the building. On the
pedimented ends facing Main Street there are two 6/6 windows on the first floor. On the second
floor is an arched 6/6 window, flanked by blinds, the top of which breaks through the cornice.
A small arched louvered fan is centered in the pediment.

The secondary (south) facade contains six windows on each floor with a central entrance containing
double glass doors. The entrance is marked by a flat roofed porch with bracketed cornice, supported
by attenuated Doric columns. The roof of the porch is surrounded by a simple balustrade and
acts as a small porch for the second story entrance. An open patio fronts the south elevation.
At the southeast corner the slate roof profile changes from a gable to<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>